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Funding Announcement Link:  
 
http://www.pccd.pa.gov/Funding/Documents/Funding%20Announcements/Local%20Law%20Enforcem
ent%20Support%20Grant%20Program%20Funding%20Announcement.pdf 
 

 
 

About this Document: 
 

This guide will provide an overview of questions and answers regarding the: Local Law Enforcement 
Grant Program funding announcement and application process, which opened on 9/1/2022. Responses 
will be provided as staff is able to process questions through 10/11/2022. 

 
 

Questions? 
 

Please contact PCCD staff at RA-PCCD-OCJSI@pa.gov with “Local Law Enforcement Grant Program” in 
the subject line. 
 
 
Questions concerning the Egrants System should be made directly to the Egrants Help Desk at either 
(717) 787-5887 or you may call toll-free at (800) 692-7292 and select option 9 and then option 6 when 
prompted, or by email at RA-egrantssupport@pa.gov. 
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1.  Eligible Applicants 
 

a) Is a school police department eligible under the local law enforcement grant opportunity? Our 
department has an ORI; however, does not submit UCR codes to PSP. Our department has arrest 
powers to charge summary offenses and detains until local law enforcement arrive. 

 
Answer:  Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the following:  
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws.  
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 

 
For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement. Only 
agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions above should make application.    
 

b) Is a District Attorney’s Office, through its Criminal Investigation Division (County Detectives), which 
has general police power and makes arrests for criminal offenses, eligible for funding under the 
Local Law Enforcement Grant Program? 

 
Answer: Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the following:  
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws.  
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 

 
For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement. Only 
agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions above should make application.    
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c)  Would a county sheriff’s office be eligible to apply for local law enforcement funds?  
 
Answer:  Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the following:  
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws.  
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 
 

For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement. Only 
agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions above should make application.    
 

d) Is a School District eligible to apply for the Local law Enforcement Grant Program? 
 
Answer: Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the following:  
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws.  
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 

 
For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement. Only 
agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions above should make application. 
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e) Our drug task force is run out of the County Detectives office. Because they are not a municipal 

PD, does this preclude them from applying for grant funds through PCCD? 

 

Answer: Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the following:  
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws.  
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 

 
For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement. Only 
agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions above should make application. 
 

f) Two municipal police departments are slated to regionalize in 2023.  They are listed as able to 
apply for these funds as individual municipal police departments.  When they regionalize in 2023 - 
if awarded the grants - would the respective municipalities that each department applied for 
funding under handle the grants on behalf of the department?  Can both departments apply for 
funding under this application, knowing that regionalization is to occur?  

 

Answer: Any eligible municipal police department not regionalized during the application period 
is eligible to make separate applications under this solicitation.  If an applicant or applicants are 
issued an award and are regionalized during the project period, PCCD staff will work with the 
applicant(s) on the appropriate administration of the grant(s). 

 
g) Who can apply for the above grant? Only local law enforcement agencies, such as 

township/borough/regional departments?  Or is there an opportunity for K-12 education 
agencies who are creating their own school police department/personnel apply? 

 
Answer: Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the following: 
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws. 
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  
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(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 
 

For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement. Only 
agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions above should make application. 

 

h) I believe the XXXX County Sheriff’s Office would be classified as a local law enforcement 
agency.  We can make arrests for traffic and certain criminal offenses.  My question is there is a 
section at the bottom that states that the agency must submit monthly crime statistics to Pa. 
State Police to be eligible for PCCD funding.  Sheriff’s Offices are not the primary law enforcement 
agency investigating criminal incidents therefore we do not file the UCR reports.  Are sheriff’s 
offices not eligible for this funding grant? 
 
Answer: Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the following: 
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws. 
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 
 

For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement. Only 
agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions above should make application. 
 

i) My police department is interested in applying for the Local Law Enforcement Grant Program. Our 
department works closely with a neighboring police department. Is it permissible to do a joint 
application as we are both in need of the same equipment? 
 
Answer: While nothing precludes an eligible applicant from jointly submitting an application 
with another eligible applicant, please note that the maximum amount awarded would be 
limited to the amount allowed for the applying agency.  Further, applicants should be aware 
that a joint proposal may impact Act 54’s prioritization requirement (i.e., the commission shall 
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prioritize issuing grants under the program for areas of this Commonwealth with high rates of 
violence or to law enforcement agencies with low clearance rates.).   
 

j) A coalition of municipal police departments here in XX County (X municipal departments and the 
county detective’s bureau) that are currently operating on old outdated and piecemeal 
communications. They are intending on apply as a group to this grant announcement in order to 
replace these communications systems and ensure that the departments can each talk to one 
another in the event of working larger events or emergency situations that there are multiple 
agencies responding too. My question is what is the best way for them to apply should they have 
the county detective bureau apply and have the municipalities be the sub grantee or should they 
have the largest municipal department apply and have everyone else be the sub-grantee? Or is 
there another appropriate method for them to submit?  
 
Answer: While nothing precludes an eligible applicant from jointly submitting an application 
with other eligible applicants, please note that the maximum amount awarded would be limited 
to the amount allowed for the applying agency.  Further, applicants should be aware that a joint 
proposal may impact Act 54’s prioritization requirement (i.e., the commission shall prioritize 
issuing grants under the program for areas of this Commonwealth with high rates of violence or 
to law enforcement agencies with low clearance rates.).   
 

k) Our County Detective Bureau (employed through the District Attorney's Office) would like to apply 
for this grant.  Is it possible for our agency to put in for the grant for our Bureau in addition to the 
other municipal agencies in the County (specifically for the recruitment / retention pay)?  Or would 
each individual agency need to apply for the grant on their own?   

 
Answer:  While nothing precludes an eligible applicant from jointly submitting an application 
with other eligible applicants, please note that the maximum amount awarded would be limited 
to the amount allowed for the applying agency.  Further, applicants should be aware that a joint 
proposal may impact Act 54’s prioritization requirement (i.e., the commission shall prioritize 
issuing grants under the program for areas of this Commonwealth with high rates of violence or 
to law enforcement agencies with low clearance rates).  Applicants will also need to provide 
justification as to how their proposal will reduce violence and/or improve clearance rates.  

 

l) Our Office is preparing to apply for this Grant and my Chief had a few questions that we were 
hoping you may be able to answer or point us in the right direction.  We were initially directed to 
this Grant by the Attorney General’s Office when seeking the “Hero Pay” they indicated is 
available to local law enforcement.  Our department, County Detective Bureau (located in the 
District Attorney’s Office), was asked by other Chiefs in the area if this may be a Grant we could 
submit on behalf of all of them for the Hero Pay, or would each individual agency be required to 
submit their own application?   We have applied and received PCCD grants in the past so we are 
familiar with the layout and we have acted as a Pass-Thru agency in the past, could the same 
apply here? 
 
Answer:  While nothing precludes an eligible applicant from jointly submitting an application 
with other eligible applicants, please note that the maximum amount awarded would be limited 
to the amount allowed for the applying agency.  Further, applicants should be aware that a joint 
proposal may impact Act 54’s prioritization requirement (i.e., the commission shall prioritize 
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issuing grants under the program for areas of this Commonwealth with high rates of violence or 
to law enforcement agencies with low clearance rates).  For more information about “Hero’s 
Pay” retention programs, please see that section in the FAQ. 

  
m) Four separate police departments operate on a regional records management system that is 

jointly owned by each agency. The RMS also interfaces with the County’s 911 dispatch software 
that provides data from the 911 Center to police vehicles in the field.  The system needs to be 
upgraded.  What is the best approach for submitting a request through the Local Law 
Enforcement Grant Program?  Should each police department submit their own request based on 
their share of costs for the RMS upgrade, and then reference the LLEG Program applications being 
submitted by each department? 
 
Answer:  While nothing precludes an eligible applicant from jointly submitting an application 
with other eligible applicants, please note that the maximum amount awarded would be limited 
to the amount allowed for the applying agency.  Further, applicants should be aware that a joint 
proposal may impact Act 54’s prioritization requirement (i.e., the commission shall prioritize 
issuing grants under the program for areas of this Commonwealth with high rates of violence or 
to law enforcement agencies with low clearance rates.).   
 

n) I have a question regarding my agency’s eligibility.  We are a non-sworn campus security 
department for XXXX College.  My initial impression is that we are not eligible, but the College 
President has asked me to look into it. 

 
Answer: Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the following: 
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws. 
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 
 

For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement. Only 
agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions above should make application. 
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o) Can county adult and juvenile probation offices be included within this grant application? If so, we 
would need to apply as the county of XXXX to cover those offices instead of the sheriff’s office as 
the subrecipient and we would have to change our opened grant application in eGrants.  

 
Answer:  While nothing precludes an eligible applicant from jointly submitting an application 
with another eligible applicant, only agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions  
should make application.  Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the 
following: 
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws. 
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 
 

For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement.  

 

p) I have 35 police Agencies in my County and I want to migrate as many of them as possible to the 
same Law Enforcement Record Management System.  Purchasing a Law Enforcement Record 
Management System IS within the Grant, may we submit a group, multi-jurisdictional application 
for the migration, rather than multiple applications? 

 
Answer:  While nothing precludes an eligible applicant from jointly submitting an application 
with other eligible applicants, please note that the maximum amount awarded would be limited 
to the amount allowed for the applying agency.  Further, applicants should be aware that a joint 
proposal may impact Act 54’s prioritization requirement (i.e., the commission shall prioritize 
issuing grants under the program for areas of this Commonwealth with high rates of violence or 
to law enforcement agencies with low clearance rates.).  
 

q) The County SWAT Team is run by my district attorney’s office and includes members of 32 officers 
over one dozen XXXX County Police Agencies.  No one agency in our County is large enough to 
support a SWAT Team so we do it as multi-jurisdictional effort under my auspices.  This is a true 
Local Law Enforcement” need.  We must replace our SWAT level body armor this year at a cost of 
$161,000.  Would I qualify as DA or as the County, for this equipment under this Grant? 

 
Answer:  Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the following: 
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws. 
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(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 
9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 
 

For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement. Only 
agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions above should make application. 

 

r) We are a planning commission writing the grant on behalf of the county and the Sheriff’s office 
and possibly the municipalities listed under our county for possible funding.  Are we able to be the 
applicant with the subrecipients as the county, the Sheriff’s office and then each of the 
municipalities or will the municipalities have to submit their own application?  

 
Answer:  While nothing precludes an eligible applicant from jointly submitting an application 
with another eligible applicant, only agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions 
below should make application.  Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the 
following: 
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws. 
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 
 

For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement.  
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s) We are applying as the County of XXXX for local law enforcement for the sheriff’s office and 911 
communications center. One of our municipalities is listed separately in Appendix A as designated 
to also receive funding under this announcement. Am I able to add each of them as a sub-recipient 
or do I need to complete a whole grant application for that municipality separately?  

  
Answer:  While nothing precludes an eligible applicant from jointly submitting an application 
with another eligible applicant, only agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions 
should make application and be eligible to receive funding.  Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement 
agency’ is defined as any of the following: 
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws. 
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 
 

For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement.  

 

t) Currently XX and XX Township are working on forming a regional police department.  The DCED 
has already done the study and both municipalities have agreed to move forward. We are now 
working towards forming the commission.  My question is are we able to apply for the Local Law 
Enforcement Grant as the regional or would I have to do it as the municipality? 

 
Answer:  If an eligible municipal police department is not regionalized during the application 
period, the eligible municipality should make separate applications under this solicitation.  If an 
applicant or applicants are issued an award and are regionalized during the project period, PCCD 
staff will work with the applicant(s) on the appropriate administration of the grant(s). 
 

u) Should a School District Police Department that covers areas in more than 1 LE jurisdiction apply 
with the jurisdiction that the school district's main offices are located in or should they apply as 
part of a county application?  
 
Answer:  Only agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions below are eligible to 
receive funding.  Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the following: 
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws. 
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
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of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 
 

For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement.  

 

v)  If we are a District Attorney’s Office applying on behalf of a joint project, for recipient agencies 
who will benefit from the project (other than the main applicant agency, in our case, the county), 
must each one be listed in the main summary section of e-grants? Or, would we document any 
pass-through or sub-awards with PCCD later upon additional review and guidance if funded? 
 
Answer:   While nothing precludes an eligible applicant from jointly submitting an application 
with other eligible applicants, please note that the maximum amount awarded would be limited 
to the amount allowed for the applying agency. Applicants should indicate in the budget section 
any funds that are being passed through to other eligible agencies. The total of each pass- 
through Budget will be incorporated into the Consultant category of the master budget.  
Further, applicants should be aware that a joint proposal may impact Act 54’s prioritization 
requirement (i.e., the commission shall prioritize issuing grants under the program for areas of 
this Commonwealth with high rates of violence or to law enforcement agencies with low 
clearance rates).   
 

w) Our county-wide 911 center in coordination with our sheriff’s office is wanting to upgrade our CAD 
network, purchase mobile data terminals and upgrade mobile radios for all police departments to 
be on the same equipment and network due to end of life of current equipment. Do I submit the 
grant under the county which is the operating unit for the 911 center, the sheriff’s office as the 
quarterly reports will fall to them or do I submit under the county with individual subrecipients as 
the sheriff’s office and each of the municipalities? 
 
Answer: While nothing precludes an eligible applicant from jointly submitting an application 
with other eligible applicants, only agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions 
below are eligible to receive funding.  Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any 
of the following: 
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws. 
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  
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(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 
 

For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement.  

 

x) A District Attorney’s office would like to apply for funding for equipment through this grant on 
behalf of the county detective for an initiative that is being planned. Does the LLE grant provide 
that opportunity? I did not see any specific info for DA offices, but the department has a county 
detective.  Or is there a better choice? 

 
Answer:  Per Act 54, a ‘law enforcement agency’ is defined as any of the following: 
(1) A public agency of a political subdivision having general police powers and charged with 

making arrests in connection with the enforcement of the criminal or traffic laws. 
(2)  A campus police or university police department, as used in section 2416 of the act of April 

9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929, certified by the Office 
of Attorney General as a criminal justice agency under the definition of "criminal justice 
agency" in 18 Pa.C.S. § 9102 (relating to definitions).  

(3) A railroad or street railway police department formed with officers commissioned under 22 
Pa.C.S. Ch. 33 (relating to railroad and street railway police) or any prior statute providing 
for the commissioning.  

(4) An airport authority police department, including the Harrisburg International Airport 
Police.  

(5) A county park police force under section 2511(b) of the act of August 9, 1955 (P.L.323, 
No.130), known as The County Code. 
 

For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for this funding 
– eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding announcement. Only 
agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions above should make application. 

 

y) Most of these grants will say municipality, borough, airport authority and transit.  We are the only 
second-class county in PA and we are MPOETC dept. Would we be covered under a county 
agency?   

 
Answer:  For this solicitation, PCCD will not determine in advance if an applicant is eligible for 
this funding – eligibility is determined by law as described above and in the funding 
announcement. Only agencies that fit squarely within one of the legal definitions above should 
make application. Please see above questions for Act 54’s definition of a “law enforcement 
agency.’ 
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2.  Eligible Activities and Expenses 
 

a) Is “Hero’s Pay” allowed?  
 
Answer:    As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible applicants can make application for retention and recruitment programs (see Eligible 
Program Activities and Expenses, Section 5 (d) on page 6 of the written funding 
announcement).  “Hero’s Pay” is considered a type of retention and recruitment 
program.  Agencies making application for this type of program should provide a breakdown of 
the amount to be provided to each officer within their budget detail section.  There are no 
requirements as to the amount of funding that can be allotted to officers except for the general 
limitation on a law enforcement agency’s budget per Act 54.  Due to the competitive nature of 
this solicitation, applicants will need to provide justification as to how this type of program will 
reduce violence in their jurisdiction and/or increase clearance rates. 

 

b) Are intersection cameras and associated License Plate Reader technology eligible under the LLE 
Grant program?   

 
Answer:  As noted on page 9 of the written funding announcement, Category 2 allows for the 
purchase and upgrade of hardware and software equipment, which could include intersection 
cameras and associated License Plate Reader technology. 

 

c) What activities are eligible under the Law Enforcement Grant Program? 
 

Answer:  As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible program activities and expenses are defined in Section 5 on page 6 of the written 
funding announcement. 
 

d) Are construction costs an eligible use of these PCCD ARP funds? Example: Needed facility 
construction/renovations (capital costs) to accommodate a dedicated space for equipment and 
training for use of force, de-escalation, and other law enforcement specific trainings. The 
municipality/police department owns the property where the construction would take place.  

  
Answer:  As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible program activities and expenses are defined in Section 5 on page 6 of the written 
funding announcement. 

 

e) Is officer backfill overtime eligible when necessary for operations (patrols, etc.)  to cover time /fill 
in while other officers are attending training? 

 
Answer:  Non-reoccurring personnel costs for sworn officers are eligible under Category 4, this 
could include overtime.  Due to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need 
to provide justification as to how this type of program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction 
and/or increase clearance rates. 
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f) Are tasers eligible under the LLE Grant program?  If so, would they be under Category 2 
“Hardware & Software Equipment”?  

 
Answer:  As noted on page 9 of the written funding announcement, Category 2 allows for the 
purchase and upgrade of hardware and software equipment, which could include tasers.    
 

g) My department is looking to apply for activities under two different categories.  Should both of 
those categories be entered into the same application?     

 
Answer:  Yes.  An applicant may select multiple categories/activities under a single 
application.  Funds for the proposed program may be used to support the eligible program 
activities and expenses listed in the funding announcement. 

 

h) I was writing to enquire if my agency can apply for the grant requesting funds from two different 
project types: Category 1: Technology and IT Improvements, and Category 4: Non-reoccurring 
personnel costs for sworn officers or do we have to choose one project over the other. 

 
Answer: Yes.  An applicant may select multiple categories/activities.  Funds for the proposed 
program may be used to support the eligible program activities and expenses listed in the 
funding announcement. 
 

i) Are vehicles included in a qualifying expense for Category 3 in non-sworn Co-responder and crisis 
intervention response?  

 
Answer: As noted on pages 9-10 of the written funding announcement, Category 3 allows for 
non-sworn personnel costs.   
 

j) Are unmarked cars and/or vehicles an allowable expense? 
 
Answer: As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible program activities and expenses are defined in Section 5 on page 6 of the written 
funding announcement. 
 

k) Under Category 4: Non-reoccurring personnel costs for sworn officers, is there a limit on how 
much “bonuses to existing officers” can be?  
 
Answer: Agencies making application for this type of program should provide a breakdown of 
the amount to be provided to each officer within their budget detail section.  There are no 
requirements as to the amount of funding that can be allotted to officers except for the general 
limitation on a law enforcement agency’s budget per Act 54.  Due to the competitive nature of 
this solicitation, applicants will need to provide justification as to how this type of program will 
reduce violence in their jurisdiction and/or increase clearance rates. 

 

l) Are station enhancements an allowable expense? Such as a renovation? If so, which category 
would this fall under?  
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Answer: As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible program activities and expenses are defined in Section 5 on page 6 of the written 
funding announcement. Due to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need 
to provide justification as to how this type of program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction 
and/or increase clearance rates. 
 

m) Are radios an eligible item for the grant funding? 
 

Answer: As noted on page 9 of the written funding announcement, Category 2 allows for the 
purchase and upgrade of hardware and software equipment, which could include radios.    
 

n) I am working with XXXX University Campus police on an application and we had a question on an 
eligible expense. The University would like to purchase RMS software and there is a quote for the 
next three years. The contract is would not start until the new year. Would this expense be eligible 
under the program? 
 
Answer: As noted on page 8 of the written funding announcement, Category 1 allows for 
technology and IT improvements, which could include records management systems.   If the 
application is approved at the Dec 14, 2022 Commission meeting, the project will be for 24-
months and have a start date of January 1, 2023 and an end date of December 31, 2024.  Any 
expenses outside the 24-month project period would not be eligible expenses. 

 

o) I am currently working with the Township Manager and Chief of Police on a submission to your 
grant source.  We wanted to know if the hiring and retention of a school resource officer, which is 
provided by the Township to the School District, would fall under the retention category of your 
funding source? 

 
Answer: As noted on page 10 of the written funding announcement, Category 4 allows for non-
reoccurring personnel costs for sworn officers.  Due to the competitive nature of this 
solicitation, applicants will need to provide justification of how your proposal will help the 
department lower violent crime rates or increase clearance rates.  
 

p)  If I were to ask for different items/projects to be funded which pertain to different 
categories/criteria, do I need to submit a grant application for each request, or can they be 
consolidated in the same grant application?  

  
Answer:  Applicants may select multiple categories/activities under a single 
application.  Applicants should not submit multiple applications under the Local Law 
Enforcement Grant Program.  Funds for the proposed program may be used to support the 
eligible program activities and expenses listed in the funding announcement. 

 

q) We are considering upgrading our BWCs, vehicle cameras, and server. Can the grant funds be 
used if we lease the equipment instead of purchase? 
 
Answer: If an application is approved at the Dec 14, 2022 Commission meeting, the project will 
be for 24-months and have a start date of January 1, 2023 and an end date of December 31, 
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2024.  Grant funds can be used for the lease of equipment during the project period of the 
grant.  Any expenses outside the 24-month project period would not be eligible expenses. 
 

r) I wanted to ask if variable message signs, radar feedback signs, sign trailers, automatic license 
plate readers, and variable message signs were eligible for funding under the Local Law 
Enforcement Grant Program? 

 
Answer: As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible program activities and expenses are defined in Section 5 on page 6 of the written 
funding announcement. Due to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need 
to provide justification as to how this type of program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction 
and/or increase clearance rates. 

 

s) Under Section 5, D – Eligible Program Activities and Expenses – To Support non-reoccurring 
personnel costs for “sworn” officers. I assume that our civilian “non-sworn” personnel such as 
dispatchers, Crossing Guards, and Police clerical staff would not be eligible. 

 
Answer: Correct, Section 5 (D) supports non-reoccurring personnel costs for “sworn” officers 
only.  Section 5 (C) supports non-sworn personnel costs.  Please see pages 9-10 under Category 
3 to determine if the anticipated non-sworn personnel costs would support local law 
enforcement efforts to address high rates of violence and/or low clearance rates.  

 

t) Can a training facility for county-wide law enforcement use be an applicable expenditure 
including: building a building (we have county ground that can be utilized), training items, firing 
range, etc?  We do not have a designated training facility and currently our officers train at 
private sportsmen clubs’ firing ranges.  

 
Answer: As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible program activities and expenses are defined in Section 5 on page 6 of the written 
funding announcement. Due to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need 
to provide justification as to how this type of program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction 
and/or increase clearance rates. 

 

u)  I am reviewing the “Eligible Program Activities and Expenses” section #5 of the “Local Law 
Enforcement (LLE) Support Grant Program. We have thirty-one sworn officers and eight civil 
support staff [dispatcher, records, UCR]. What is the best way for me to apply for the $1200 
retention bonus? Would the bonus also apply to our non-sworn as they are a valuable part of our 
team? How do you apply for that portion of the Grant? 
 
Answer: As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible applicants can make application for retention and recruitment programs (see Eligible 
Program Activities and Expenses, Section 5 (d) on page 6 of the written funding 
announcement).  Agencies making application for this type of program should provide a 
breakdown of the amount to be provided to each officer within their budget detail 
section.  Section 5 (d) supports non-reoccurring personnel costs for “sworn” officers only. There 
are no requirements as to the amount of funding that can be allotted to officers except for the 
general limitation on a law enforcement agency’s budget per Act 54.  Due to the competitive 
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nature of this solicitation, applicants will need to provide justification as to how this type of 
program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction and/or increase clearance rates. 

 

v) Can outfitting an evidence room be a valid funding request with appropriate justification and line 
items? 

 
Answer:  As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible program activities and expenses are defined in Section 5 on page 6 of the written 
funding announcement. Due to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need 
to provide justification as to how this type of program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction 
and/or increase clearance rates. 
 

w) Under the Local Law Enforcement Grant, is it possible to apply for funding that may fall under 
multiple categories? For example, improving the RMS and applying for portions of the Hardware 
and Software equipment by applying funding to new MDT and LPR systems? 

 
Answer: Applicants may select multiple categories/activities under a single application.  Funds 
for the proposed program may be used to support the eligible program activities and expenses 
listed in the funding announcement. 
 

x) Are police service weapons (firearms) and bullet-proof vests eligible expenses for the local law 
enforcement grant?  
 
Answer:  As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible program activities and expenses are defined in Section 5 on page 6 of the written 
funding announcement. Due to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need 
to provide justification as to how this type of program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction 
and/or increase clearance rates. 
 

y) If we are able to have terms of a contract such that it expires outside of the 2-year project 
window, for example, a 3-year purchase on a technology agreement paid all at one time that ends 
after the grant term does, is that allowable under the grant? Since the funds are expended during 
the life of the grant? If a tech firm indicated a 5-year agreement were possible, and it was paid 
during the life of the funds (pay now, but no other payments due for 5 years), would that be 
allowable? 
 
Answer:  Grant funds can support the lease of equipment during the project period of the grant. 
Any expenses outside the 24-month project period would not be eligible expenses.  For a 5-year 
lease agreement, costs can be pro-rated accordingly.   
 

z) For non-sworn personnel, such as crisis staff, should we wish to provide hero pay, can we? 
 

Answer:  Please review Category 3 (Non-sworn personnel costs) on pages 9-10 to determine if 
the anticipated non-sworn personnel costs would support local law enforcement efforts to 
address high rates of violence and/or low clearance rates. For more information regarding 
“Hero’s Pay,” please refer to the question (a) in section 2 (Eligible Activities and Expenses) of this 
document. 
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aa) For non-sworn staff in police departments (civilian administrative support, attorneys, or analysts) 
should we wish to provide hero pay, can we?  

 
Answer:  Please review Category 3 (Non-sworn personnel costs) on pages 9-10 to determine if 
the anticipated non-sworn personnel costs would support local law enforcement efforts to 
address high rates of violence and/or low clearance rates. For more information regarding 
“Hero’s Pay,” please refer to the question (a) in section 2 (Eligible Activities and Expenses) of this 
document.   

 

bb) For all personnel, such as crisis staff or police, does continuing education “count” as training? The 
funding announcement allows for additional training costs. Certainly training is a type of 
education. But, if we want to actually reimburse educational credits – for sworn or unsworn 
personnel that are relevant to our project and in line with funding announcement goals – is this 
possible under the funding guidelines? Does formal higher education (college, technical training, 
certifications), count as training?  

 
Answer:  Applications for these types of programs should describe the type of training the 
applicant wishes to support with these funds, the number of officers the applicant hopes to 
support with the training, and the reasoning behind the training request. This should include a 
detailed description of the need for the training and how the proposed training will help the 
agency decrease violent crime rates or increase clearance rates.  
 

cc) Our municipality is very small, we have a secretary who is employed by the borough, but handles 
administrative and various other duties for the police department. This particular employee does 
not solely handle duties within the police department, can our agency apply for grant funding for 
employee retention bonuses under Category 3: Non-sworn personnel costs for this particular 
employee?  

 
Answer:  Please review Category 3 (Non-sworn personnel costs) on pages 9-10 to determine if 
the anticipated non-sworn personnel costs would support local law enforcement efforts to 
address high rates of violence and/or low clearance rates. For more information regarding 
“Hero’s Pay,” please refer to the question (a) in section 2 (Eligible Activities and Expenses) of this 
document 
 

dd) Under Category 4: Non-Reoccurring Personal Cost, question 6 asks if you intend to provide one-
time bonuses to existing sworn officers with this funding.  Can bonuses be spread out over a 
several year period or must this be done on a "one-time" basis? 

 
Answer:  Agencies making application for this type of program should provide a breakdown of 
the amount to be provided to each sworn officer within their budget detail section over their 
grant period.  There are no requirements as to the amount of funding that can be allotted to 
officers except for the general limitation on a law enforcement agency’s budget per Act 54.  Due 
to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need to provide justification as to 
how this type of program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction and/or increase clearance 
rates. 
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ee) Our police department has 4 projects that they would like to include in the grant, but one project 
is the main priority.  The total funds requested will be somewhere around $400k and the 
application will breakdown the way those funds would be allocated to the projects.  Is this 
allowable? 

 
Answer:  PCCD encourages applicants to give careful consideration to what they are asking for in 
their grant application and provide clear and practical justification for their funding requests. 
Applicants are discouraged from "throwing in the kitchen sink" to apply for the statutory 
maximum amount for their department. A recommended strategy is to put time and effort into 
determining what you need the MOST, and crafting your application and budget accordingly, 
even if it means applying for less than your statutory maximum. 
 

ff) One of the projects we are seeking funding for is a civilian community relations specialist.  This 
role is listed as an applicable project, but we wanted to know if benefits were also allowable 
expenses.   
 
Answer:  Yes.  Benefits are a category within the budget detail section. 

 

gg) I am a Detective with the XX Borough Police Department.  I wanted to ask, can any parts of this 
grant be used for a canine program?  Could funds from this grant be used for canine training, 
purchasing canine equipment (vehicle, outfitting existing vehicle) or purchasing a canine 
 
Answer:  As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible program activities and expenses are defined in Section 5 on page 6 of the written 
funding announcement. Due to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need 
to provide justification as to how this type of program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction 
and/or increase clearance rates. 

 

hh) Can an eligible entity apply for items and/or programs that could benefit not only themselves but 
other departments on a regional level? 

 
Answer:  An eligible applicant can apply for programs that benefit other eligible departments, 
but please note that the maximum amount awarded would be limited to the amount allowed 
for the applying agency.  Further, applicants should be aware that a joint proposal may impact 
Act 54’s prioritization requirement (i.e., the commission shall prioritize issuing grants under the 
program for areas of this Commonwealth with high rates of violence or to law enforcement 
agencies with low clearance rates.).  
 

       ii) Would the purchase of door barricade devices be an allowable expense?  
 

Answer:  As part of the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program established by Act 54, 
eligible program activities and expenses are defined in Section 5 on page 6 of the written 
funding announcement. Due to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need 
to provide justification as to how this type of program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction 
and/or increase clearance rates. 
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jj) Would trainings for our police and our faculty be an allowable expense (E.g. active shooter 
trainings)? 
 
Answer:  Applications for these types of programs should describe the type of training the 
applicant wishes to support with these funds, the number of officers the applicant hopes to 
support with the training, and the reasoning behind the training request. This should include a 
detailed description of the need for the training and how the proposed training will help the 
agency decrease violent crime rates or increase clearance rates.  
 

 

kk) If we have onsite trainings would the cost for meals be allowed? 
 

Answer:  As stated in PCCD's Applicant's Manual, food and/or beverage expenses provided by 
subgrantees at conferences, trainings, etc. are rarely allowable. All costs must be necessary for 
the performance of the project, reasonable, and sufficiently justified.  The budget detail section 
should identify what the funds will be used for and line items should be entered for each 
budgeted cost. Successful applicants should expect PCCD staff to engage with them regarding 
the allowability and necessity of proposed budget items and applicants may be required to 
adjust their budget. 
 

ll) May funds be used to purchase used equipment? 
 
Answer:  Used equipment could be an allowable expense. The purchase must be in compliance 
with the procurement standards identified in PCCD’s  Applicant's Manual - Current Version.pdf 
(pa.gov) beginning on page 17 and the Procurement Details section within your Egrants 
application.  

 

  mm)  We are working on a retention and recruitment program for PT officers – would incentive pay 
annual totals be considered for funding through the program, i.e. $6000 total paid out monthly 
through the year per officer? 

 
Answer:  Agencies making application for this type of program should provide a breakdown of 
the amount to be provided to each sworn officer within their budget detail section over their 
grant period.  There are no requirements as to the amount of funding that can be allotted to 
officers except for the general limitation on a law enforcement agency’s budget per Act 54.  Due 
to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need to provide justification as to 
how this type of program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction and/or increase clearance 
rates. 
 

nn) Is salary considered recurring or would the program consider funding the total annual salary for 
an officer for one year? We are working on hiring an additional PT and potentially an additional FT 
officer in 2023/2024. 

 
Answer:  As noted on page 10 of the written funding announcement, Category 4 allows for non-
reoccurring personnel costs for sworn officers.  Salaries for sworn officers would be considered 
reoccurring costs.  Due to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need to 

https://www.pccd.pa.gov/Funding/Documents/Applicants%20Manual/Applicant%27s%20Manual%20-%20Current%20Version.pdf
https://www.pccd.pa.gov/Funding/Documents/Applicants%20Manual/Applicant%27s%20Manual%20-%20Current%20Version.pdf
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provide justification of how your proposal will help the department lower violent crime rates or 
increase clearance rates.  
 

oo) Our department will be receiving funding under the PCCD 2022 Body-Worn Camera Policy and 
Implementation Grant, which is a 1:1 matching funds grant. Would it be allowable to request the 
second half of the Body Worn Camera project under this funding posting? 
 
Answer:  No, matching funds for the 2022 Body-Worn Camera Policy and Implementation Grant 
must br provided from a non-federal source. The federal American Rescue Plan (ARPA) is 
supporting the LLE Support Grant Program. 
 
 

pp) Our police department wants to replace/upgrade our existing camera hardware, software and 
storage system.  A quote was provided for a 10-year contract that could be paid off within the 
two-year funding period.  Would this be an allowable expense?   

 
Answer:  Grant funds can support the contract during the project period of the grant. Any 
expenses outside the 24-month project period would not be eligible expenses.  For a 10-year 
contract, costs can be pro-rated accordingly.   
 

3.  Funding Availability 
 

a) Can you please clarify how much money is available to XXXX County?  Is it ten million or ten 
thousand? 

 

Answer: Please refer to in Appendix A of the written funding announcement for the maximum 
amount of funding allowed under the Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program (as 
prescribed under Act 54 and determined by population). 

 

b) If we are an entity that meets the guidelines for both solicitations (District Attorney’s 
Office/County Detective Division) would we be permitted to apply for both funding sources?   

 
Answer: If an agency meets the eligibility requirements for both the Gun Violence Investigation 
& Prosecution and Local Law Enforcement Grant Programs, the agency can submit an 
application under both solicitations.  

 

c) If so, are we eligible for the maximum amount listed in the solicitation for our county cumulatively 
or that amount for each application?  
 

Answer: An agency is eligible to apply for the amount listed in Appendix A under each respective 
solicitation.   
 

d) If so, are we permitted to apply for the same items in multiple grant applications if they fall within 
the allowable costs for each solicitation to maximize the chances of successfully obtaining 
funding? 
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Answer: Yes; however, you must indicate in both submissions that you made application in this 
manner.  

 

e) I am seeking clarification of the award limits for the Local Law Enforcement Support (LLES) and 
Gun Violence Investigation & Prosecution (GVI&P) grant programs recently released by PCCD.  Is 
the $ 5,000,000 maximum award for Transit Agency or Campus Police described in the guidance 
for each of the two programs a separate limit for each program or the combined limit across both 
programs?   
 
Answer: An agency is eligible to apply for the amount listed in Appendix A under each respective 
solicitation. For the example above, the agency could theoretically be awarded $ 5,000,000 in 
LLE Support Grants and another $ 5,000,000 of GVIP funds.  Please be aware, however, that only 
$185 million is available between both the LLE Support and the GVIP programs to serve the 
entirety of the Commonwealth’s law enforcement agencies.  PCCD encourages applicants to give 
careful consideration to what they are asking for in their grant application and provide clear and 
practical justification for their funding requests. Applicants are discouraged from "throwing in 
the kitchen sink" to apply for the statutory maximum amount for their department. A 
recommended strategy is to put time and effort into determining what you need the MOST, and 
crafting your application and budget accordingly, even if it means applying for less than your 
statutory maximum. 
 

f) Do either the GVIP or LLES Grant program require matching funds?  
 
Answer: No.  Matching funds are not required for either program. 
 

g) In regards to requesting the funding in our budget, if approved, would we be permitted to use the 
grant funding in place of the budgeted amount or are we not permitted to supplant a budgeted 
amount?  Our fear is that we fail to budget for the program and do NOT receive the 
grant.  Therefore, we would not be able to implement this program at this time. 
 
Answer: No.  Per page 3 of the written funding announcement, funding must not be used to 
supplant/replace state, federal, or local funds that would otherwise be available to provide for 
program–related services. PCCD funding is to be used in addition to other funds that are made 
available for services.  
 

h) If we are in the $10 million dollar range, and our County is a $10 million cap and applications far 
exceed that amount, if our grant submission requests $1.1 million, would PCCD either A) view it as 
too high and administratively reject it or B) reach out and ask us to revise our project budget? 

 
Answer: Each agency is eligible to apply for the amount listed in Appendix A.  This includes 
application by Counties and other agencies listed in the Appendix.  PCCD encourages applicants 
to give careful consideration to what they are asking for in their grant application and provide 
clear and practical justification for their funding requests. Applicants are discouraged from 
"throwing in the kitchen sink" to apply for the statutory maximum amount for their department. 
A recommended strategy is to put time and effort into determining what you need the MOST, 
and crafting your application and budget accordingly, even if it means applying for less than 
your statutory maximum. 
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i) The money available by county and municipality are listed in Appendix A.   XXXX County has $10 
million listed and several municipalities are listed with their own funding – so are they to apply 
separately from the county?  

 
Answer: Each agency is eligible to apply for the amount listed next to their agency in Appendix 
A.  This includes applications by Counties and other agencies listed in the Appendix.  PCCD 
encourages applicants to give careful consideration to what they are asking for in their grant 
application and provide clear and practical justification for their funding requests. Applicants are 
discouraged from "throwing in the kitchen sink" to apply for the statutory maximum amount for 
their department. A recommended strategy is to put time and effort into determining what you 
need the MOST, and crafting your application and budget accordingly, even if it means applying 
for less than your statutory maximum. 

 
j) Would the DAO and another city agency be eligible to apply for the same funding with different 

projects? Or does PCCD expect one application from Philadelphia for each grant opportunity? 
 
Answer:  As allowed by Act 54, Philadelphia is eligible to apply for the maximum amount 
allotted for a city of the first class under both the Local Law Enforcement Support and Gun 
Violence Investigation and Prosecution solicitations. Given that there is limited funding, one 
coordinated response per applicant is preferred.  As noted in the funding announcements, if 
multiple applications are submitted, PCCD staff and review teams may consider all applications 
collectively when determining award amounts under this solicitation.  
 

k) Is this an all or nothing grant opportunity?  Meaning that, if my agency applies for funding from 
different categories, can funding be awarded for one or more of the categories even if all 
categories aren’t approved, and/or, if one category is denied, will the entire grant be denied?   
 
Answer:  After the competitive process is completed, successful applicants should expect PCCD 
staff to engage with them in finalizing budgets which could include the elimination or addition of 
budgeted items and could result in an increase or decrease to the amount requested in the 
grant application.  PCCD encourages applicants to give careful consideration to what they are 
asking for in their grant application and provide clear and practical justification for their funding 
requests. Applicants are discouraged from "throwing in the kitchen sink" to apply for the 
statutory maximum amount for their department. A recommended strategy is to put time and 
effort into determining what you need the MOST, and crafting your application and budget 
accordingly, even if it means applying for less than your statutory maximum. 

 

l) If each municipality that was designated individually in Appendix A submits an individual grant 
application for items needed, will their awarded amount go against the individual police 
department’s or the county’s maximum amount of eligible funding? Or if they are going in as 
subrecipients under the county, will their amount be deducted from the individual police 
department’s or the county’s maximum amount of eligible funding?  
 
Answer:  Each agency is eligible to apply for the amount listed next to their agency in Appendix 
A (as prescribed under Act 54 and determined by population).  This includes applications by 
Counties and other agencies listed in the Appendix.  If the county submits an application on 
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behalf of other eligible agencies, the maximum funding cannot exceed the amount listed for the 
county in the Appendix. 
 

m) Will the grant awards be awarded by line items or the whole requested amount?  In other words, 
if the Commission doesn’t agree to fund certain line items, will those line items be removed from 
the total request/award amount or are the awards all or nothing?  
 
Answer:  After the competitive process is completed, successful applicants should expect PCCD 
staff to engage with them in finalizing budgets which could include the elimination or addition of 
budgeted items and could result in an increase or decrease to the amount requested in the 
grant application.  PCCD encourages applicants to give careful consideration to what they are 
asking for in their grant application and provide clear and practical justification for their funding 
requests. Applicants are discouraged from "throwing in the kitchen sink" to apply for the 
statutory maximum amount for their department. A recommended strategy is to put time and 
effort into determining what you need the MOST, and crafting your application and budget 
accordingly, even if it means applying for less than your statutory maximum. 
 

4.  General Questions Section 
 

a) Under the grants general questions portion, it asks a number of questions as to the quantity of 

employees and budget.  When we answer this question, are we supposed to use only the budget 

and employees solely delineated to our agency (the XXXX County Detective Bureau) or should we 

use the DA’s office employees and budget numbers as a whole? The main issue is that the DA’s 

Office support staff also works for our department at times. 

 

Answer:  Yes, please only use the budget and employees solely delineated to your agency.  

Please note that if salaries are partially paid out of the county detective’s budget, please note 

them as part-time employees of the county detectives’ agency.  

 

b) What is the threshold was for the “high violent crime rate” and the “low clearance rate?” 
 

Answer: Violent crime rates and clearance rates, as calculated based on the most recent 
available UCR or NIBRS data, combined with the applicant’s articulation of need, description of 
data collection, and connection of the project to the reduction of violent crime or increase in 
clearance rate, will result in an overall grant score. 
 

c) Our IT folks are researching upgrading our BWC, Vehicle Video Cameras, and Servers. 
Unfortunately, I don’t think they will have anything definitive by the October 13th application 
deadline. Can I submit our application for the “To Support non-reoccurring personnel costs for 
“sworn” officers,” and if IT gets the information to me in time, submit another Grant application? 
 
Answer: Eligible applicants should only submit one application under this solicitation.  After the 
competitive process is completed, successful applicants should expect PCCD staff to engage with 
them in finalizing budgets which could include the elimination or addition of budgeted items 
and could result in an increase or decrease to the amount requested in the grant application.  
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5.  Applicant Requirements 
 

a) When it comes to the UEI number and being registered with SAM during the grant, does the police 
agency need their own, or do they use the boroughs UEI? 

 
Answer: The municipality of the police jurisdiction must be registered with the System for 
Award Management (SAM, formerly CCR) and have a Unique Entity Identifier Number. 

 

6.  Procurement Details Section 
 

a) If we are requesting items with a total value of under $250k (Small Purchase), should we answer 
“No” to the competitive and noncompetitive questions?    
 
Answer:  You would answer “no” only if you will obtain multiple price or rate quotations from 
an adequate number of qualified sources to determine the most qualified vendor.  

 

b) What is the bidding requirement process for the grant? We would like to upgrade and add some 
of our current technology and software. Will we be required to go through a RFP process rather 
than working with our current vendor for these upgrades and additions?  
  
Answer: Applicants must use one of the procurement methods explained in detail beginning on 
page 17 of the Applicant's Manual - Current Version.pdf (pa.gov). 

 

c) Can you please clarify for me who needs a vendor record, the applicant agency or the recipient 
agency?  And, when and where is the vendor record required in the application?  

 
Answer:  In order to receive subgrant funds from PCCD, the applicant agency must have a valid 
Commonwealth Vendor ID number. If the applicant agency does not have a Commonwealth 
Vendor ID, the applicant agency must register as a Non-Procurement Vendor on the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s Vendor Registration website: 
https://www.budget.pa.gov/Services/ForVendors/Pages/Vendor-Registration.aspx 

 

d) Are competitive bids necessary for grant submittal or only to be kept on file for audit purposes? 
 
Answer:  Subgrantees shall use their own procurement procedures and regulations, provided 
that the procurement conforms to applicable federal law and the standards identified in the 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (2 CFR 200).  See PCCD’s  Applicant's Manual - Current Version.pdf (pa.gov) beginning on 
page 17 for more information. 
 

e) Are bids that match CoStars pricing but are not CoStars participants acceptable, if documentation 
is provided? 

 
Answer:  See PCCD’s  Applicant's Manual - Current Version.pdf (pa.gov) beginning on page 17 
for information regarding procurement procedures. Just being a COSTARS participant does not 

https://www.pccd.pa.gov/Funding/Documents/Applicants%20Manual/Applicant%27s%20Manual%20-%20Current%20Version.pdf
https://www.budget.pa.gov/Services/ForVendors/Pages/Vendor-Registration.aspx
https://www.pccd.pa.gov/Funding/Documents/Applicants%20Manual/Applicant%27s%20Manual%20-%20Current%20Version.pdf
https://www.pccd.pa.gov/Funding/Documents/Applicants%20Manual/Applicant%27s%20Manual%20-%20Current%20Version.pdf
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mean the purchase is competitive and meets federal procurement guidelines. Multiple quotes 
or bids may be required even if a vendor is a COSTARS participant. 

 

7.  Budget Summary Section 
 

a) If we plan to submit a grant request for retention bonuses for sworn officers, which would be the 
appropriate budget category to include that line item?  Personnel?  Operating Expenses?  Other?  

 
Answer: Agencies making application for this type of program should provide a breakdown of 
the amount to be provided to each officer within their Personnel budget line item of the budget 
detail section.  There are no requirements as to the amount of funding that can be allotted to 
officers except for the general limitation on a law enforcement agency’s budget per Act 54.  Due 
to the competitive nature of this solicitation, applicants will need to provide justification as to 
how this type of program will reduce violence in their jurisdiction and/or increase clearance 
rates. 
 

b) In the budget preparation section, the Personnel Budget Line Item details require Budgeted 
Hours/week, # of Weeks and Hourly pay rate to calculate the Cost of that line item.  This format 
does not support a program that awards a one-time retention bonus or a program that awards a 
lump-sum recruitment bonus.  If these programs are proposed, would it be acceptable if a “1” was 
used in the data boxes for “Budgeted Hours/week” and “# of Weeks” and then the amount of the 
proposed bonus in the box titled “Hourly pay rate” to properly calculate the annual cost of that 
particular line item? 

 
Answer: In order to enter a lump sum recruitment bonus, entering “1” in the “# Budgeted 
Hours/Week” field, a “1” in the “# Weeks” field, and the lump sum recruitment bonus amount in 
the “Hourly Pay Rate” field is acceptable. Please enter a narrative description in the Justification 
field which provides sufficient detail for the payment(s). Due to the competitive nature of this 
solicitation, applicants will need to provide justification as to how this type of program will 
reduce violence in their jurisdiction and/or increase clearance rates. 
 

c) Do we need to fill out each line under category even if you are NOT using that grant money for 
that category of the budget?  We would be only using the grant funds to cover equipment of the 
BWC/car cameras and tasers.  

 
Answer:  Agencies should provide a breakdown of the items requested in the appropriate 
budget line item/s of the budget detail section.  If there are no grant requests under a particular 
line item, please leave “Zero’s” in the line item.    

  

d)  Is there applicable Admin Fee that can be taken in for administration of the grant? If so, what is 
that amount?  
 
Answer: Applicants should prepare a budget which provides detail on the line item costs that 
will be incurred to successfully implement the proposed project. Please review the Eligible 
Program Activities and Expenses and the Budget Detail sections of the narrative funding 
announcement document. 

 



 

28 
 

e) Under the local law enforcement grant program, can indirect costs be applied at our federal rate? 
 
Answer: Applicants possessing a federally approved indirect cost may apply that indirect cost 
rate as a line item within their proposed budget.  

 

f) I am currently working on the Local Law Enforcement Grant Program application for our 
department and the “budget detail” tab has a status of “in progress” but I am not able to click on 
the tab to update the information or even add information.  Can you please explain to me how I 
would go about submitting this information? 

 
Answer:  Applicant should select the Budget Detail link and then on the budget setup page, 
applicant will choose one of the budget setup options and then select the save button.  This will 
take the applicant to the budget detail summary page to complete the budget information for 
the applicant’s project. Please reference PCCD’s Budget Detail Walkthrough Guide for a step-by-
step reference for creating a budget.  For other Egrants issues, please reference all our Grant 
Guides. 
 

g) Should quotes for items budgeted be part of the uploads for the grant application?  
 
Answer: Quotes are not required to be submitted as part of the application process.  All 
expenses must be described in the Justification box located in the Egrants Budget Detail section.  
The budget detail section should identify what the funds will be used for and line items should 
be entered for each budgeted cost. Clearly identify all costs, including salary and benefits. 
Calculations should be clear and entered as the Egrants system requires in the budget detail 
section.  
 

h) For every dollar budgeted in Hero’s Pay, my understanding is that the departments must still pay 
FICA at the 7.65% rate for every dollar paid. Is this correct? For example, we are submitting a joint 
application, listing several departments as “consultants”. If the county acts as the pass-through 
entity for these funds, and cuts checks to each for these payments, we would still be responsible 
for FICA costs as part of those payments, yes? 

 
Answer: Employers would be responsible to pay any payroll taxes as required by federal, state 
and local laws. 
 

8.  Performance Indicators 
 

a) All of the performance indicators established by PCCD are answered in other sections of the 
application.  Am I supposed to add a (or several) new performance indicator(s)?  If so, would you 
please provide an example of what one would look like?  Or where I can find the information? 

 
Answer:  You are not required to add any performance measures in this section as part of your 
application. Any measures that you do enter, however, will appear on your quarterly program 
reports. Performance measures can be identified to collect data on specific grant activities.  

https://www.pccd.pa.gov/schoolsafety/Documents/Technical%20Assistance/Budget%20Detail%20Walkthrough.pdf
https://www.pccd.pa.gov/schoolsafety/Pages/Grant-Guides.aspx
https://www.pccd.pa.gov/schoolsafety/Pages/Grant-Guides.aspx

